
Simon W. Baker   B.Ed  MBA  MISPAL 

Chief Executive 
 
 
LICENSING & REGULATORY COMMITTEE AGENDA 
 
Date: 
 

Thursday, 14 December 2017 

Time: 
 

10.00 am 

Venue: 
 

The Council Chamber, Moorlands House, Leek 

6 December 2017 
 

PART 1 

1. Apologies for absence, if any.  

2. Minutes of the Previous Meeting of the Licensing and Regulatory Committee 
(Pages 3 - 6) 

3. Urgent items of business, if any.  

4. Declarations of interest, if any.  

5. Proposed Cumulative Impact Area (Pages 7 - 24) 

6. Chair/Members' Questions/Issues.  

7. Date of Next Meeting - 9 March 2018  

 
SIMON BAKER 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 

Membership of Licensing & Regulatory Committee 
Councillor L D Lea (Chair) Councillor D Grocott 
Councillor B A Hughes Councillor P Jackson 
Councillor B Johnson Councillor I Lawson 
Councillor G Lockett Councillor M A Lovatt 
Councillor M M Lovatt Councillor I J Lucas 
Councillor R Plant Councillor D Shaw 

 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

LICENSING & REGULATORY COMMITTEE MEETING 
 

Minutes 
 

FRIDAY, 17 NOVEMBER 2017 
 
PRESENT: Councillor L D Lea (Chair)  
 
 Councillors B A Hughes, P Jackson, B Johnson, G Lockett and 

D Shaw 
 
IN ATTENDANCE: M Trillo       - Executive Director (People) & Monitoring Officer 

M Towers   - Senior Officer (Housing, Public Health and Licensing 
S Bradbury – Licensing Officer 
P Trafford   -  Member & Democratic Services Officer 

 

 
APOLOGIES: Councillors M A Lovatt, M M Lovatt and I J Lucas 
 

27 MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE LICENSING AND REGULATORY 
COMMITTEE HELD ON 10 MARCH 2017 
 
Councillor Jackson asked whether, under Minute 22 (Licensing Enforcement Activity 
– July to September 2016) it had yet been established whether “Downtown Pizza”, 
Cheadle was still in operation. Mike Towers was able to advise that the business 
was still trading, but not after 11pm. The licence was only required for trading after 
that time and there was, therefore, no breach taking place. The premises would be 
monitored for future breaches. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Minutes of the meeting of the Licensing and Regulatory 

Committee held on 10 March 2017 be approved as a correct record 
and signed by the Chair. 

 
28 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS, IF ANY. 

 
There were none. 
 

29 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST, IF ANY. 
 
There were no declarations made. 
 

30 IMMIGRATION ACT 2016 UPDATE 
 
The new Immigration Act 2016 which came into effect on 1 December 2016 
introduced new ‘right to work’ checks for new Taxi Drivers and Operators. 
 
Mike Towers confirmed that, after almost a year of operation, no problems had been 
experienced with the new applications processed in that time.  
 
In the light of recent news headlines surrounding the ‘Uber’ organisation and 
shortfalls in their staff vetting process, Mike was able to assure members that the 
current checking regime meant that such a situation could not happen in the SMDC Page 3

Agenda Item 2



Licensing & Regulatory Committee - 17 November 2017 
 

2 
 

area. The Police ‘DBS’ check was repeated every three years and flagged up any 
criminal convictions. The Council’s Licensing Policy required applicants to 
demonstrate that thety were a suitable person before the licence was issued. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be NOTED. 
 

31 IMPLEMENTATION OF THE HACKNEY CARRIAGE DECALS 
 
Work was underway on the introduction of Hackney Carriage Decals, with the 
procurement process ongoing with local companies to supply suitable decals. 
 
All existing and new Hackney Carriage Vehicles were to be required to display the 
decals on the bonnet and also the front passenger and driver doors stating 
“Staffordshire Moorlands District Council Licensed Hackney Carriage Vehicle”. The 
decals would make it easier for people to distinguish between ‘Hackney Carriage 
Vehicles’ (can be hailed) and ‘Private Hire Vehicles’ (must be pre-booked). 
 
The decals were to be rolled out to operators over the coming weeks, with the first 
issue to each operator/driver being free of charge, but any subsequently issued 
decals  would have to be paid for. Magnetic signs had been trialled previously but 
problems had emerged with signs being lost. It was also easier to transfer the 
magnetic signs over from 1 vehicle to another, allowing drivers to fraudulently 
'authorise' vehicles which had not been subject to the correct checks. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be NOTED. 
 

32 LICENSING ENFORCEMENT ACTIVITY JULY - OCTOBER 2017 
 
The Committee received a report on Licensing Service enforcement actions for the 
period 1st July 2017 to 31st October 2017. 
 
The details were as follows:- 
 

Frequency Enforcement Activity  

10 Letters/Emails to Taxi Drivers regarding the Safeguarding Courses 
and the BTEC course requirements.  

0 Driver Penalty Points Awarded  

87 Temporary Event Notices Issued with Alcohol  

19 Late Temporary Event Notices issued with Alcohol 

0 Temporary Event Notices issued without Alcohol  

1 Review of Premises Licence (Stanley’s)  

 
The primary focus of enforcement work to date had been on ensuring that the law in 
relation to all relevant licensing legislation and guidance was properly observed. In 
considering the focus of this activity the Licensing Service had had reference to:- 
 

 Those premises/vehicles against which complaints had been received; 
 

 Those premises which did not hold a licence but where intelligence suggested 
that licensable activity was taking place. 

 
A variety of breaches were identified in the course of these activities, but were 
addressed by a voluntary change of behaviour on the part of the Licence Holder or Page 4



Licensing & Regulatory Committee - 17 November 2017 
 

3 
 

via specific action by the Licensing Service and partners. In none of the cases was 
further legal action or the application of criminal sanction necessary.  
 
RESOLVED – That the report be NOTED. 
 

33 CHAIR/MEMBERS' QUESTIONS/ISSUES. 
 
There were no questions or issues raised. 
 

34 DATE OF NEXT MEETING - 9 MARCH 2018 
 
 

The meeting closed at 10.25 am 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________Chairman ____________________Date 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



   

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

Report to Licensing Committee 
 

14 December 2017 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Attached documents Appendix 1 – Report from Staffordshire Police 
 
1.        Reason for the Report:  
 

1.1 The report is to update members on the representation received 
from Staffordshire Police and to consider initiating a consultation on 
the introduction of a Cumulative Impact Area and Policy.  

 
2. Recommendations 
 

2.1 That Members consider the report and representation from 
Staffordshire Police, and if members are satisfied in respect of the 
benefits to be gained from adopting a Cumulative Impact Area 
Policy then Members are asked to agree to an 8 week public 
consultation on the proposal commencing on 18 December 2017. 

 
2.2 A further report will be presented to Members following the 

consultation period, outlining the consultation responses and any 
additional options for the Members to consider. One option may be 
that Members consider revising the current Statement of Licensing 
Policy 2016-2021 to include the adoption of a Cumulative Impact 
Area for Leek, which if approved will then go to Full Council for 
adoption. 

 
 
 
 

TITLE:  Proposed Cumulative Impact Area 
 
PORTFOLIO:  Cllr Michael Bowen – Portfolio Holder for 

Communities 
 
OFFICER:  Alicia Patterson - Operations Manager 

(Regulatory Services) 
 

WARDS:  Non-Specific 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



   

3. Executive Summary   
 

3.1 A meeting was held with representatives of Staffordshire Police and 
the Council’s Licensing Service on 17 November 2017 to consider 
concerns expressed by the Police about increasing crime and 
disorder in Leek Town Centre and its immediate surrounding 
environment and the link between this increase and the local night 
time economy, particularly in association with licensed premises. 
 

3.2 The Police raised the issue of whether the Council might consider 
the adoption of a Cumulative Impact Policy, specifically covering the 
area around and including Leek Town Centre, in order to allow 
better management of the night time economy and reduce the 
impact of crime and disorder. 

 
3.3 The Licensing Officer advised that members of the Licensing & 

Regulatory Committee could consider representations from the 
Police on any proposal that might impact on the Council’s Licensing 
Policy, and that the introduction of a Cumulative Impact Area would 
require an amendment of the current Licensing Policy at Full 
Council.  The Licensing & Regulatory Committee could determine 
the validity of such a representation and potentially agree to the 
commencement of a local public consultation. A further report would 
then be required, and presented to the Licensing Committee to 
consider and if so minded, Members could then agree to 
recommend the introduction of a Cumulative Impact Area to Full 
Council for approval. 

 
3.4   The Police welcomed the opportunity to present their report to 

members of the Licensing & Regulatory Committee. The Licensing 
Officer advised that the next arranged meeting was in February 
2018. The Police asked if it would be possible for their report to be 
heard sooner rather than later, as they were concerned about the 
escalation of crime and disorder and the increasing threats to the 
safety of their Officers on the streets, particularly at weekends. 

 
4. Background and Detail 

 
4.1      The Licensing Act 2003 requires the Council in its role as a 

Licensing Authority, to prepare and publish a Statement of 
Licensing Policy and make such revisions to it, as necessary.  
The current Statement of Licensing Policy was adopted in 2016 and 
is due to be reviewed in 2021. 

 
Staffordshire Moorlands District Council’s Statement of Licensing 
Policy 2016-2021 states at paragraph 14.2 that The Licensing 

Page 8



   

Authority, having not been presented with sufficient evidence to the 
contrary, does not consider any area within the city to currently 
have a particular concentration of licensed premises causing a 
cumulative impact on one or more of the licensing objectives. The 
Licensing Authority will keep this matter under review and 
accordingly reserves the right, should the need arise, to introduce a 
special policy concerning cumulative impact during the life of this 
Statement of Licensing Policy. 

 
4.2 The Licensing Act 2003 does not make specific reference to 

Cumulative Impact, however guidance issued under section 182 of 
the Act details ‘the potential impact of the promotion of the licensing 
objectives of a significant number of licensed premises 
concentrated in one area. For example, the potential impact on 
crime and disorder or public nuisance on a town or city centre of a 
large concentration of licensed premises in that part of the local 
authority area.’ 

 
4.3 Cumulative impact must not be confused with “need”. Need 

concerns the commercial demand for another licensed premises, 
which is a matter for the market place and the planning authority. 

 
4.4 A cumulative impact policy creates a presumption that within the 

area identified, the Council will refuse applications for new 
premises licences or club premises certificates or variation 
applications to existing licences or certificates, whenever it receives 
relevant representations, unless the applicant can demonstrate why 
the operation of the premises will not add to the cumulative impact 
already being experienced. 

 
4.5 It is important to note that a Cumulative Impact Policy does not 

relieve responsible authorities or interested parties of the need to 
make a relevant representation. Before a Licensing Authority may 
lawfully consider giving effect to its Cumulative Impact Policy, a 
relevant representation must have been received. 

 
4.6 Staffordshire Police requested that we consider introducing a 

Cumulative Impact Area for Leek Town Centre and they have 
provided supporting information and data which is included as 
Appendix 1 to this report. 

 
5. Options and Analysis 

 
5.1 Members of the Committee are asked to note the contents of this 

report, and agree to the 8 week consultation period commencing on 
18 December 2017 and run until 12 February 2018.   

Page 9



   

 
6. Implications 

 
6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 

 
The potential reduction in crime, disorder and anti-social behaviour 
resulting from a greater control over the night time licensed 
economy. 
 

6.2 Workforce 
 
None. 
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
 
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's 
Equal Opportunities policy. 
 

6.4 Financial Considerations 
 
None. 
 

6.5 Legal 
 
The Licensing Policy 2016-2021 may need amending to 
accommodate the proposed cumulative impact area/policy. 
 

6.6 Sustainability 
 
No Issues to consider.  
 

6.7 
 
 
 

Internal and External Consultation 
 
Internal and External Consultation will be required (8 weeks)  

6.8 
 
 
 

Risk Assessment 
 
No Risk Assessment required. 

Mark Trillo 
Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer 

 
Web Links and 

Background Papers 
Location Contact details 

SMDC Statement of Licensing  
Policy 2016-2021  

https://www.staffsmoorlands.gov.
uk/media/1302/Licensing-policy-
2016-

Alicia Patterson 
Operations Manager 

Page 10

https://www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk/media/1302/Licensing-policy-2016-21/pdf/Licensing_policy_2016-21.pdf
https://www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk/media/1302/Licensing-policy-2016-21/pdf/Licensing_policy_2016-21.pdf
https://www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk/media/1302/Licensing-policy-2016-21/pdf/Licensing_policy_2016-21.pdf


   

21/pdf/Licensing_policy_2016-
21.pdf 

01538 395400 Ext 4408 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   
   

   
   
   
   

 

Page 11

https://www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk/media/1302/Licensing-policy-2016-21/pdf/Licensing_policy_2016-21.pdf
https://www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk/media/1302/Licensing-policy-2016-21/pdf/Licensing_policy_2016-21.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 1 

Page 13



 

 

 

 

PC 5244 Platt 

 

 

 

 

 Please note NTE (night time economy) is recorded as 21:00hrs to 07:00hrs and DTE 
(Day time economy) 07:00hrs to 21:00hrs 

Therefore there will be some crossover with night time and day time economy.  

 

 

 

MOORLANDS LPT  

CUMULATIVE IMPACT POLICY REPORT 

LEEK TOWN CENTRE 

 
  
 

 

 

Page 14



INTRODUCTION 

I respectfully report the following in relation to a request that a cumulative 
impact policy be considered for Leek Town Centre. 

In support of this report I have used information and data provided by 
Corporate Services from the Staffordshire Police systems. Leek is the largest 
of 3 rural towns in the Staffordshire Moorlands LPT the others being Cheadle 
and Biddulph. 

Leek is the busiest of the three towns and produces the highest level of crime 
and disorder in night time economy. Leek has seen an increase in public 
space violence which YTD has increased by 135.3 % this equates to an actual 
increase of 23 further incidents.  This is the highest increase for any town 
within Staffordshire. 

Biddulph has seen an increase of 40.7% which equates to 11 additional 
incidents and Cheadle has seen a decrease of 40.6% with 13 less reported 
incidents.   

For the purposes of this report the town centre is depicted on the map below. 
For the most part crime and disorder attributed to the night time economy 
takes place as bordered within, Portland Street, Stockwell Street, St Edwards 
Street, and Southbank Street.  

For the purposes of this report ‘licenced premises’ relates to premises 
licensed to carry on any licensable activity, including the sale of alcohol for 
consumption on or off the premises and the provision of late night 
refreshment. This includes late night food outlets which are not licensed to sell 
alcohol. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 15



OVERVIEW 

Leek town has a mixture of business premises, some of which are licensed to 
sell food and or liquor and residential premises mainly in the form of terraced 
housing and residential properties above or connected to business premises. 
Over recent years there have been a number of changes to the Town centre 
and development of the Town is still ongoing.  

Over recent times the Town has seen the arrival of a Premier Inn Hotel and 
the Leek and Buxton College has expanded and been redeveloped. There are 
also plans that student accommodation will house a number of students in the 
Town in the not too distant future.  

There are currently 30 Licenced premises in Leek town centre giving a varied 
and cultural night time economy. The vast majority of venues close by 2am 
with Infinity making use of its 3am licence on a Friday and Saturday. 

There has been a new licence agreed for what was previously the engine 
room with a closing time of 03:30hrs which has prompted a number of other 
licensed venues to submit TEN’s notices for late night drinking up to 5am. 

It is anticipated that the venues will in the near future look at applying for later 
licences to compete with the new venue.  

The night time economy has changed over a number of months and the Town 
has become much busier and more challenging over that period to the present 
time.  

In recent months we have seen the arrival of a number of new venues 
including, Beer Dock, Beyond the Pale, Bottle lab, and Shaw’s bar (rebranded 
as Rewind 80s bar)  Infinity night club is also under new management after 
being closed for some time and is seeing a vast increase in numbers 
attending, more so than in previous years.  

Friday and Saturday night sees the most patrons attending the town with 
Saturday being the busier of the two.  

The dynamic of the town in recent years is that of local residents frequenting 
the town centre, however in recent months there has been an increase of 
people visiting the area from Stoke on Trent and surrounding areas as it 
becomes more popular with the diverse nature of the drinking establishments.  

The clearing of the town is now much later than in previous years and on 
some occasions there are still large numbers of people around the town up 
until 3:30-4am.  

Responsible businesses are vital to the wellbeing of healthy, prosperous and 
stable communities across the county.  Staffordshire Police recognises that 
business and licensed premise related crime is not victimless and the impact 
that the wide breadth of criminality has on business and communities is both 
significant and detrimental, and in some instances may even lead to 
businesses ceasing to trade and residents moving away.   

 

 

 

Page 16



 

ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR 

Reports of ASB increased dramatically in 2016 and they are predicted to be 
the same for 2017 or higher. Repeat locations are as expected around the 
Market place and surrounding streets. Fridays and Saturdays recording the 
highest level of demand. 

Time scale for ASB, is as expected generally highest between the hours of 
20:00hrs and 00:00hrs. 

 

 

2016  Leek Town Centre ASB Demand increased by 102 (94%) compared to 2015 and accounted for 17% of 
the Total Town Centre Demand 

DTE Leek Town Centre ASB accounts for 14% of the Total DTE Town Centre demand 

NTE Leek Town Centre ASB accounts for 23% of the Total NTE Town Centre demand 

 57% of ASB is recorded during the DTE, 43% during the NTE 

 

 

2017  to date, Leek Town Centre ASB Demand accounts for 13% of the Total Leek Town Centre demand and 
levels are predicted to reach similar levels to 2016. 

 63% of ASB is recorded during the DTE, 37% during the NTE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 17



VIOLENT CRIME  

Violent crime is made up of a number of crime types and sub sets include 
most serious violence, assault with less serious violence, assault without 
injury, harassment, other violence offences. It also includes domestic violence 
and abuse, hate crime and since April 2015 includes the online threat from 
cyber harassment and malicious communications. 

Violent crime increased in 2016 and to date is almost equal to 2016 levels and 
by year end there will be an increase overall.  
 

2016 Leek Town Centre Violent crime increased by 43 (46%) compared to 2015 

DTE - Violent crime increased by 9 compared to 2015 

NTE - Violent crime increased by 34 compared to 2015 

40% of Violent crime is recorded during the DTE, 60% during the NTE 

 

 

2017 to date, Violent crime have nearly reached 2016 levels and if this trend continues will exceed 2016 

DTE - Violent crime has already exceeded 2016 levels 

NTE - Violent crime is predicted to increase 

46% of Violent crime is recorded during the DTE, 54% during the NTE 

 

 

2016 Leek Town Centre recorded the highest levels of violent crime during the 
NTE compared to other RIAs within the Moorlands LPTS. 

 

2017 To date Leek Town Centre remains 1st with the highest number of violent 
crime during the NTE compared to other RIAs within the Moorlands LPT 
including the other two town centres. 

 

Page 18



All Violent Crime Types - Proportions – NTE (2016 Calendar 
Year) Leek Town Centre 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

88%

10%

2%

Violence

Public Order

Sexual Offences

Robbery

48%

33%

10%

Less Serious Violent Crime with Injury

Other Violence against the person

Public Order

More Serious Violent Crime with Injury

Other Serious Sexual Offences

Rape

Personal Robbery

Other Sexual Offences

Page 19



CRIMINAL DAMAGE 

Criminal damage in 2016 again was higher than in the previous two years and 
current predictions are that 2017 will equal, or be slightly lower than 2016 but 
still significantly higher than in 2014 and 2015.  

 

2014 % 2015 % 2016 % 2017 %

22 54% 23 66% 29 51% 23 66%

19 46% 12 34% 28 49% 12 34%

41 35 57 35

0700-20:59

2100-06:59

Sum:  

 

 

 

 

 

POLICING 

The town centre in Leek is supported on a Friday and Saturday by a safer 
night’s operation working in conjunction with the street pastors, who deal with 
a good number of anti-social and drunkenness incidents outside of police 
systems so it is important to consider that those instances are not captured in 
this report. 

There are two Police officers dedicated to patrolling the Town centre on Friday 
and Saturday night which includes foot patrol and licensing visits of Town 
centre venues. This is challenging and can be very demanding due to the high 
number of venues spread across the Town. Although dedicated it is important 
to remember, due to current demand they may be called away for periods of 
time in absolute emergency. 

The demand on policing particularly in the current climate cannot be 
underestimated and is difficult to deliver with dwindling resources and an 
expanding night time economy which is no longer concentrated in the 
nucleolus of the market place. 

Page 20



CONCERNS 

It is felt that, should the dynamic continue to change with regard to the number 
of licensed premises, especially those premises that serve only alcohol and 
those with late licences, this will have a detrimental affect on the town centre 
and impact on the quality of life of its residents and those visiting the area.  

Residents and visitors do comment on the level of noise and there are 
complaints of noise nuisance and anti-social behaviour which have increased 
to date.  As previously described the recent development in the town has seen 
more premises occupied by local residents some of these being managed by 
social landlords some privately owned. 

The strength of any Night Time Partnership comes from the proportion of 
venues that have subscribed to it. In recent months the membership has 
decreased. The effectiveness of the control measures in banning violent 
customers is undermined by those who do not support the initiative.  

There are a good number of venues who are members of Pub watch, however 
equally there are a number who are not members. A number of venues who 
are not in the pub watch scheme attract many of the banned individuals which 
means a great number of the problematic individuals congregate in a number 
of venues across the town which is difficult to manage.  

I would like to see all venues in the town centre subscribing to the pub watch 
initiative as it is a very real and valuable deterrent. Many offenders who are 
familiar with the criminal justice system have no issue with spending the night 
in a cell or the consequences of a court appearance but prevention from 
drinking and socialising in their local town is a major issues to them and 
becomes a real deterrent.  

Pub watch banned individuals have increased dramatically over the last 3 
years which endorses that anti-social behaviour, drunkenness, and violence 
have increased as evidenced in this report. 

2015 9 banned  

2016 11 banned 

2017 51 banned 

The majority of venues are very supportive of the police but those who are not 
and who fail to comply with the conditions of their licence, fail to control the 
behaviour of customers have faced positive police action in terms of 
enforcement. 

Staffordshire Police as a responsible authority respectfully submit this report 
as a relevant representation. 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 2 
  

Page 23



 

Page 24


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting of the Licensing and Regulatory Committee
	5 Proposed Cumulative Impact Area
	5.1. Appendix 1 Staffordshire Police cumulative impact report
	5.2. Appendix 2 Cumulative Impact Area Map


